
__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – March 18, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 

31450 NW Commercial 
Monday, March 18, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
 A.  Approval of regular session agenda 
 

B.  Approval of minutes of 3/04/2013 Council meeting 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 

may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

 
A. None scheduled 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

A. None Scheduled 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. Approval of letter to Sunset Park Association 
 
B. Financial statements presentation and discussion with Finance Director, 

Rachael Lembo 
 
C. Council to discuss possible water rate increases 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 

None Scheduled 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 1 of 93



__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – March 18, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. Ordinance No. 415 Municipal Chapter 1.40— Parks Board; An Ordinance 
of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, amending 
Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.40 Parks Board. First Reading by 
title only. 

 
SECOND READING: 
B.  Ordinance No. 414 Municipal Chapter 3.01 Sanitary Sewer System; An 

Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, 
Amending Chapter 3.01 of Municipal Code Regarding Sanitary Sewer 
System for second reading and adoption. First reading was at March 4, 
2013 Council meeting. 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
  

Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 
Chief, and Library Director 

 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on 

meetings attended and other items. 
 

B. April 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City 
will also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and 
other services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, 
please call City Hall at (503)647-5555  

***** 
 
City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center, 31450 

NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 
Monday, April 1, 2013 Monday, April 15, 2013 Monday, May 6, 2013 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 2 of 93



________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – March 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS  
City Council Meeting—Regular Session 

Monday, March 4, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 
MINUTES 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute. 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Councilors: Michael Broome, Michael 

Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, Glen Warren, Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
 Excused: Council President Teri Lenahan 
 

Staff present: Public Works Director Blake Boyles, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, 
Library Director Debbie Brodie, Recording Clerk Gail Waibel, 
Account Clerk Margaret Reh 

 
 City Manager Martha DeBry was excused 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
 A.  Approval of regular session agenda 
 

B.  Approval of minutes of 2/19/2013 Council meeting 
 
Motion by Warren, seconded by Demagalski to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  The motion was approved unanimously 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
There was no public comment forthcoming. 
 
6. PRESENTATION: 

 
A. Proclamation: April 1-6, 2013 National Community Development Week by the 

National Community Development Association 
 
Public Works Director Boyles informed the Council of the details surrounding this 
proclamation. Councilor Kindel serves as the North Plains representative to the Office of 
Community Development with Washington County. The City of North Plains has been a 
recipient of nearly three million dollars since the program’s inception. Kindel stated his 
strong support of both the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and 
the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program. This proclamation resolves that 
the community of North Plains is a supporter of these programs and urges Congress 
and the Administration to recognize the outstanding work being done locally and 
nationally by these two programs by supporting increased funding for both programs in 
FY 2014.  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 3 of 93



________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – March 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Motion made by Kindel, seconded by Demagalski  to acknowledge this proclamation. 
Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 

A. None Scheduled 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. Eagle Scout Project Request: Wascoe right-of-way at Main Street 

 
Eagle Scout Logan Miller and Scout master Mitchell Couch presented a proposal to the 
Council to organize a project that creates a small pedestrian park/garden within the 
right-of-way at Wascoe Street and Main Street in North Plains.  Boyles presented the 
staff report.  This proposal was also presented to the Parks Advisory Committee (PAC) 
at their February 27, 2013 meeting.  Discussion ensued in regard to legal issues and 
citizens input into the project.  Boyles informed Council staff had discussed the request 
with the City Attorney.  The City Attorney indicated the proposal cannot be something 
permanent or the street would have to be vacated.   There was discussion in regard to 
whether a survey of the property owners in the area had been conducted.  No 
neighborhood survey was conducted to date.  There was discussion regarding the 
materials and design of the walkway.  Miller said most of the materials have been 
donated, however, he requested $200 from the City to go toward some materials not 
being donated. 
 
Mayor Hatcher polled the Council and it was the consensus that the Eagle Scout Project 
to create a small pedestrian park/garden within the right-of-way at Wascoe Street and 
Main Street should be approved.  Mayor Hatcher advised Miller to stay in contact with 
City Manager DeBry for assistance. 
 
It was noted that after completion of the pedestrian walkway, some minor ongoing 
maintenance would be required.  Mayor Hatcher thanked Miller and said he was excited 
about the Eagle Scout project.  He reiterated that Miller should remain in contact with 
City Manager DeBry.  

 
B. Council  to adopt Resolution No. 1780: A Resolution of the City Council of the 

City of North Plains, Oregon, Authorizing Specific Requests for the 2013 
Farmers Market. 

 
Doug Nunnenkamp, President of the Farmers’ Market Board presented a list of requests 
regarding specific needs for the operation of the 2013 Farmer’s Market.  This includes 
authorization for street closure of NW 314th Avenue from NW Commercial Street to NW 
Kaybern Street for the Farmer’s Market activities.  Boyles presented the staff report. 
Also included in the list was a request for the City to purchase 3-4 banners that may be 
installed on light poles along Glencoe for the duration of the Farmer’s Market.  No 
decision was made regarding the purchase of the banners.  
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 4 of 93



________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – March 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 
 

Motion by Demagalski seconded by Kindel to adopt Resolution No. 1780, a resolution of 
the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, authorizing specific requests for the 
2013 Farmers Market. The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None scheduled 
 
10. ORDINANCES 
 

A. DISCUSSION:  
Municipal Chapter 1.40 Parks Advisory Committee-Discussion.  Participation 
of City Council Members on Parks Advisory Committee 

 
Boyles presented the staff report.  Council is revisiting the purpose and structure of the 
Parks Advisory Committee (PAC).  The PAC has been an ad hoc committee of the City. 
Its appointment has been temporary in nature and the PAC can only make 
recommendations to the Council.  Council discussed making the PAC a standing 
committee of the Council.  There was also discussion in regard to City Councilors and 
staff serving as members of the Committee.  The staff report included the City 
Attorney’s opinion in regard City Councilors serving on the PAC.   It was generally 
agreed City staff should not be members of the PAC, however, a staff member would 
attend the meetings.  This item was for discussion only. Staff will bring the ordinance to 
the City Council for consideration of first reading at a future Council meeting.  
 

B. INTRODUCTION: 
Ordinance No. 414 Municipal Chapter 3.01 Sanitary Sewer System; An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Amending 
Chapter 3.01 of Municipal Code Regarding Sanitary Sewer System. Reading 
for the first time by title only  

 
Boyles explained that this ordinance is to clean up the language of Municipal Chapter 
3.01.  United Sewerage Agency has been reconstituted at Clean Water Services and 
most buildings in North Plains were connected to the sanitary sewer system making 
some of the language in the ordinance appear outdated. 
 
Motion by Demagalski, seconded by Warren to read Ordinance No. 414, an Ordinance 
of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon amending Chapter 3.01 of 
Municipal Code regarding Sanitary Sewer System by title only for the first time.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hatcher read Ordinance No. 414 the first time by title only. 
 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
  
The City Manager’s written report was included in the packet. 
 
Boyle reported the Claxter Street project opens for bids on March 14, 2013. He will be 
sending out notices of the status to residents who will be impacted by the project. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 5 of 93



________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – March 4, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
The ODOT interchange is staying on target. There will be a closure near the end of 
March.  ODOT will give the City notice of when the closure will begin.  Boyles is 
continuing to work with ODOT on the construction coordination of the interchange and 
pedestrian trail. 
 
The necessary repairs at the yellow house have been completed. Each department of 
the City has now moved materials into the building for storage. The Food Bank has also 
moved their supplies into the building. They will be operational next week. 
 
Chief Snyder reported the Police Department is continuing their training. They have 
completed the emergency vehicle training and will now begin their firearms training. 
 
Debbie Brodie directed the Council to her written report.  She highlighted the Genealogy 
Classes being offered. There are only two spots left. If the interest continues to be high, 
they may consider offering the class again in April or May. 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Council reviewed the March 2013 Council Calendar confirming Councilors’ attendance 
at assigned meetings. Kindel will be attending the Library Board and Mayor Hatcher will 
be attending Planning Commission. 
 
Mayor Hatcher asked Council if they want to continue meeting at the North Plains 
Senior Center. The consensus was to meet at the Senior Center for the March 18th 
meeting, with some rearrangement of the Council seats. 
 

Hatcher will be meeting with Senator Starr and others in Salem to research Oregon 
Zoning laws to site composting facilities out in farming communities and away from 
municipalities. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Martha DeBry, City Manager/Recorder 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 6 of 93



 

 

 

 

 

March 15, 2013 

 

Dear President Duyck and Boardmembers, 

For many years, we have enjoyed building a relationship with the City of Banks through our 

collaborative efforts to bring a greater awareness to western Washington County.  Creating a 

network of communication and support among the residents of Banks and North Plains which 

ultimately improves the quality of life within both communities.  The importance of community 

spirit in a rural setting such as the one we enjoy here in western Washington County cannot be 

underestimated.   

We hope the 2013 Banks BBQ, Truck and Tractor Pull has a very successful year, as your association 

supports many wonderful community programs and organizations.  We believe the North Plains 

Chamber of Commerce participation in the event will be an asset in building the Banks BBQ brand 

by offering new entertainment and vending options.   

I am writing on behalf of the North Plains City Council to share a concern about the promotion of 

the “Oregon garlic festival” during the Banks BBQ.  For many years, North Plains has been 

synonymous with an annual garlic festival  during the second weekend in August.  The Council 

continues to support this tradition in 2013 under the sponsorship of the North Plains Events 

Association which has named its event “Summer Fest and Garlic Out West” 

(www.garlicoutwest.org).  There will be a three-day festival, organized by the same core group of 

volunteers that have presented the garlic festival for many-years.  It will include a parade, car show, 

fun run, musical entertainment, food, arts and crafts vendors.  The Council allowed a new 

community group to sponsor a garlic-themed festival, because the Council wanted to ensure our 

community’s best known event will continue for many years.   We look forward to having a 

longevity equal to the Banks BBQ.   

As you may know our community festival grew from a small family celebration called the North 

Plains Days into the "Elephant Garlic Festival" over the past 15 years.  The garlic festival is the only 

event that reliably attracts regional visitors into our small city each year.  Local non-profit 

organizations such as the North Plains Senior Center, our  volunteer fire department and the Boy 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 7 of 93

ubclerk
Text Box
Agenda Item No: 8A



Scouts and Cub Scout (Troops 175 and 275) rely on this event as one of their largest annual fund 

raisers.  Our local grocery market, restaurants and  bars enjoy substantially higher patronage during 

the festival.  Most importantly our residents have access to a unique free entertainment venue 

where family and friends can gather.    

A competing event with the same theme within one week could potentially have a negative impact 

on our community, while providing limited value to the Banks BBQ.   

The City Council would welcome Sunset Park Association’s support of our community by not 

promoting a competing garlic festival in conjunction with the Banks BBQ  

Respectfully,  

 

David Hatcher, 
Mayor 
City of North Plains 
 

cc.  Banks City Council, Banks City Manager 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 8 of 93



 

Agenda Item No:8B  
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 
Date:   March 15, 2013 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Discussion of financial Statements dated June 31, 2012 
 
 
Request:   Council hear a presentation by Finance Director Rachael Lembo.  
 
Background:  The City has received the Financial Report for the year ended 
June 30, 2012 from Pauly Rodgers and Co, PC, who serve as the City’s auditors. 
 
The City has received an unqualified opinion, which is highly desirable. 
 
Page 44 reflects 4 exceptions found 

1) Notice for budget hearing was not advertised 5-30 days prior to budget 
hearing.  (Frankly, we are not sure what went wrong with notices that 
should have been prepared in June 2011.) 

2) The notice for the supplemental budget was not advertised 5 days prior 
to the supplemental budget.  (While notice was prepared, it does not 
appear to have been published properly in January 2012.) 

3) Disbursements of funds were within budget except as noted on page 
21.  There are 5 events: 

a. Police materials and services over-dispursed by $4,318.  
However the total police budget was under its allocation by 
$15,947.   

b. Street tax fund over-dispursed capital by $14,175.  
c. Parks Capital Fund over-dispursed by $11,073. 
d. Vehicle and equipment reserve fund exceeded appropriations by 

$403. 
e. URA exceeded appropriations by $271 for transfers out.  

4) Bid documentation was not retained for some purchases over $5,000. 
 
Financial Manager Rachael Lembo will walk Council through the report, 
highlighting important points regarding the City’s finances.  She has calculated 
that roughly 75% of the budgeted sums were expended.  The Claxtar Street 
project deferment resulted in lesser expenses than originally budgeted.  She will 
also advise how we can tighten our financial system to avoid over-dispursements. 
 
All general fund activities expended less than they were budgeted (pg. 31) 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 9 of 93



 
Fiscal Impact:  The Financial Report is a snapshot of the City’s financial health at 
the end of fiscal year 2011/2012.  Our overall financial position reflected a cash 
balance for all funds of $3,296,846,  Revenues for the year were $2,347,698 and 
$2,186,641 (a $161,057 difference.)  Revenues were within 97.5% of projections. 
 
Recommendation:  Council hear Ms. Lembo’s presentation regarding the 
document.  
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 10 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 11 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 12 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 13 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 14 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 15 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 16 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 17 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 18 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 19 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 20 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 21 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 22 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 23 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 24 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 25 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 26 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 27 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 28 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 29 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 30 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 31 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 32 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 33 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 34 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 35 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 36 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 37 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 38 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 39 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 40 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 41 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 42 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 43 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 44 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 45 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 46 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 47 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 48 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 49 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 50 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 51 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 52 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 53 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 54 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 55 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 56 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 57 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 58 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 59 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 60 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 61 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 62 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 63 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 64 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 65 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 66 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 67 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 68 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 69 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 70 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 71 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 72 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 73 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 74 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 75 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 76 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 77 of 93



_____________________________ 
Page 1 of 4—2013 Water Rates 
 

 

Agenda Item No. 8C 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   March 14, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry-City Manager 

Subject: Discussion of proposed water rate increases 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request:  Council to discuss water rate increase options and provide direction to staff 
for the July 2013 rate increase. 
 
Background: The Water Fund is an enterprise that supports the storage and delivery 
of potable water in North Plains.  A rate increase is needed to address the cash flow 
needs of the fund.  There are two main areas where the City spends funds: Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) and operations. 
 

Capital Improvement Program 
The City’s water master plan needs to fund several capital projects in the coming five 
years: 
 

Project 2013/14 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 

Pump House Foundation  $30,000    
12” Glencoe Main     $250,000 
8” 309

th Main   $31,000    
General main replacement $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 
Earthquake Stabilization    $157,000  
12” Gordon Road     $60,000 

 
Staff has reviewed the water capital improvements program (CIP) and deferred a 
project to rehabilitate a main in Commercial Street for six years.  Additionally a project 
to extend a new 12” main under the railroad tracks at Glencoe was deferred to 2020, 
with the intention of rolling that expense into future debt that will be serviced after 21/22. 
 
The average revenue requirement for the CIP over the next 5 years is $136,000/year if 
projects are funded with cash.  The ten year average revenue requirement is 
$120,000/year. 
 
It should be noted not all expenses for a project are incurred in the fiscal year in which 
they are assigned.  Some expenses may be incurred in the year prior for engineering or 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 78 of 93



_____________________________ 
Page 2 of 4—2013 Water Rates 
 

year after as many Spring/Summer projects span two fiscal years.  Project timing can 
be adjusted in future years to address cash shortages should they occur.   
 
The general main replacement funds ($51,000) are to provide funding for small projects 
that are identified in the field and need immediate resolution.  If no projects are 
identified, then no expenses will be incurred by the water fund.  
 

Operations 
Cash flow projections for the coming years included a 3% annual increase for materials 
and supplies (which would include water purchases from the Joint Water Commission) 
and 5% annual increase in interfund transfers which provides funding for public works 
staff and overhead administration costs.  Debt payments will remain flat through 2023.  
Special payments in water are pass thru costs to transfer Joint Water Commission 
funds and should not have a significant impact on the operating budget. 
 

Water Base Rate 
The City’s customer rate base breakdowns as follows: 
 

Monthly Water 
Charges: Base Rate 

Average 
Monthly 

Customers 
Monthly 
Revenue 

2012 
Annual 

Revenue 

3/4" meter $47.50  715 $33,962.50  $407,550.00  

3/4" outside city $88.86  1 $88.86  $1,066.32  

WA County Fire $110.35  1 $110.35  $1,324.20  

1" meter $79.19  16 $1,267.04  $15,204.48  

1" meter outside 
city $118.79  1 $118.79  $1,425.48  

1.5" meter $158.30  8 $1,266.40  $15,196.80  

2" meter $253.23  12 $3,038.76  $36,465.12  

3" meter $553.70  1 $553.70  $6,644.40  

 
Most residences have ¾ inch meters which have a minimum fee of $47.50/month, 
which provides about half of the water fund’s revenues.  Increasing the base rate for 
residential customers would look like the following: 
 

Proposed Increase Monthly Rate  Monthly Change 

Current rate $47.50 
 1% $47.98  $0.48  

2% $48.45  $0.95  

3% $48.93  $1.43  

4% $49.40  $1.90  

5% $49.89 $2.39 

 
Staff anticipates adding approximately 20 single family homes in the coming year which 
should yield another $10,000-$15,000 in operating revenues next year.  An additional 
$30,000 in SDC revenue is also likely in the coming year.  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 79 of 93



_____________________________ 
Page 3 of 4—2013 Water Rates 
 

 
Consumption 

The calendar year consumption billed for 2012 was 84,384 units, or an average of 7,032 
per month.  Construction projects (like Clean Water Services and ODOT) were billed for 
5,828 units in 2012.  These customers are billed at the highest consumption rate tier.   
 
Approximately 13% of the water purchased by the City in 2012 was not billed as a result 
of water loss, consumption at public and non-profit facilities.  The average water units 
purchased in prior three years has been 7,622 units/month.  
 
Billed consumption is estimated between 78,000 units and 84,300 units, which can 
affect annual revenues by $25,000.  Water consumption tends to be volatile as peak 
demands are strongly associated with weather conditions (eg. a mild summer would 
reduce sales, or hot fall would increase sales.)  Construction projects that draw water 
from a meter are another variable that affects revenue each year.  Staff anticipates the 
ODOT project and Highland Court subdivision will affect future demand.  Recology has 
also used a tremendous amount of water in the recent year to manage its compost 
piles, which may also impact total revenues.  
 
Proposed consumption rates were evaluated with 1%-5% increases: 
 

Units Consumed  
Tier 1 

00-25 ccf 
Tier 2 

26-50 ccf 
Tier 3 

51 ccf and up 

Current rate $3.91 $4.24 $4.79 

1% $3.95 $4.28 $4.84 

2% $3.99 $4.32 $4.89 

3% $4.03 $4.37 $4.93 

4% $4.07 $4.41 $4.98 

5% $4.11 $4.45 $5.03 

* 1 ccf = 100 cubic feet = 748 gallons 
 

What a rate increase looks like for most residents: 
Most residents consume roughly 6 units a month which is billed at the 0-25 ccf rate tier.  
The typical impact of the rate increase would be as follows 
 

  Base Rate 
6 units 

Consumption 
Total 

Monthly  
Monthly 
Change 

Annual 
Change 

Current $47.50 $23.46 $70.96     

1% $47.98 $23.69 $71.67 $0.71 $8.52 

2% $48.45 $23.93 $72.38 $1.42 $17.03 

3% $48.93 $24.16 $73.09 $2.13 $25.55 

4% $49.40 $24.40 $73.80 $2.84 $34.06 

5% $49.88 $24.63 $74.51 $3.55 $42.58 

 
Some residents will incur charges at higher rate tiers if they have large landscaped 
areas.   

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 80 of 93



_____________________________ 
Page 4 of 4—2013 Water Rates 
 

 
Staff evaluated rate increases at the 1%, 2%, 3%, 4% and 5% levels in 2013/2014, 
together with similar rate increases in 2014/15 and 2015/2016.  While the 2013/14 will 
not have many projects and operation costs are stable, subsequent years will have 
higher revenue requirements.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Setting rates determines the amount of cash that flows into the water 
fund.  The Council has several options it can consider: 
 

1) No rate increase.  This will severely limit funds available for CIP projects in the 
short term. 

2) Rate increase 4%-5%.  This will meet most cash needs for the CIP, and allow for 
brief low consumption periods. 

3) Rate increase of 2%-3%.  This may meet most cash needs for the CIP.  Low 
consumption would likely result in higher rate increase in subsequent years. 

 
The City may want to consider taking advantage of low interest rates and borrowing 
from the State Infrastructure Fund for the 2016/17 Earthquake Stabilization project and 
or 2019 12” Main in Commercial St project, in order to further reduce the CIP revenue 
requirement in the first five years, and minimize rate increases in subsequent years.  

Environmental Issues: None identified. 
 
Recommendation:  Council provide direction regarding the level of rate increase it 
would like presented in April. 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 81 of 93



 

Agenda Item No: 10A 
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 
Date:   March 15, 2013 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Ordinance No. 415 of the City Council of the City of North Plains, 

Oregon, amending Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.40 Parks 
Board 

 
 
Request:  Read Ordinance No. 415 of the City Council of the City of North Plains, 
Oregon, amending Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.40 Parks Board for the 
first time by title only.  
 
Background: 
The Parks Advisory Committee (PAC) is an ad hoc committee of the City.  This 
means that its appointment is temporary in nature, and the PAC can only make 
recommendations to Council.   
 
The PAC met on Wednesday, February 27, 2013 and discussed the role of the 
committee and if it should become a regular institution of the City.  Its role may 
include setting fees for parks usage, establishing rules for permits, evaluating 
parks and recreation programs of the City and oversight of the Parks capital 
program.  At present the PAC can only make recommendations to the Council, and 
they have no authority to act on behalf of the Council. 
 
City Council reviewed the draft ordinance on March 4, 2013.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact with this item. 
 
Recommendation: Council read by title only for the first time Ordinance No.415 
amending Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.40 Parks Board. 
 
Motion: I move to read Ordinance No. 415 by title only. 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 82 of 93



 
Chapter 1.40 
Parks Board 

 
1.40.010 Parks Advisory Board established. 

The Parks Advisory Board, composed of seven five to nine  members, to be appointed 
by the mayor with the consent of the city council , is hereby established. The Parks 
Advisory Board members shall appoint, at their first regular meeting, a chairperson,  and 
vice chairperson and secretary from their membership. The position of chairperson shall 
be selected each January for a one-year term. 

1.40.020 Membership qualifications. 

Qualifications for appointment to membership on the Parks Advisory Board include 
demonstration of positive interest in the development, operation and maintenance of 
public parks, open spaces and trails in North Plains and status as a resident or 
representative of a property or business owner within the city limits. The Board shall be 
comprised of at least one, but not more than two, city councilors and one, but not more 
than two, Planning Commissioners.   

1.40.030 Terms of office. 

The term of each of the initial members shall be determined by the mayor with the 
consent of the council.  

Upon the expiration of the terms of each of the initial members, the mayor shall, with the 
consent of the council, appoint a successor to each member whose term shall have 
expired.  

Each succeeding term following the initial appointment shall be for a period of two four 
years, and the mayor shall, with the consent of the council, appoint successors to such 
offices for each term of twofour years thereafter. Appointments shall be structured so as 
to ensure that terms overlap.  

The mayor, with the consent of the council, may also appoint city council advisory 
members to the committee who will serve on an ex officio basis and without vote.  

Vacancies of the Parks Advisory Board shall be filled for the remaining term of vacant 
positions the members ceasing to be members of the board in the same manner as the 
original appointment. It shall be the duty of the chairperson or the vice chairperson of 
the board to notify the mayor and city council when a vacancy exists. 

1.40.040 Meetings. 

Agenda No: 10A 
Exhibit A 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 83 of 93



The Parks Advisory Board shall meet at least quarterly on a specific schedule adopted 
for the year by the board members. The board chairperson may call, by and upon the 
concurrence of three members, special meetings of the board.  

 

1.40.050 Purpose. 
The general functions of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall be to advise 
the Public Works Director and City Council on issues such as: 
 

(1)  Concerning the management, care and control of public parks and recreation 
facilities and programs of the City, together with all park property and 
recreation facilities which may be acquired and developed; 

 
(2)  Concerning the making and altering from time to time of needful rules and 

regulations for the maintenance of order, safety and decency in said parks 
and recreation facilities; 

 
(3)  Concerning the establishment and modification of fees for park and 

recreation services, programs, or facility rentals; 
 
(4)  Concerning the expenditure of such funds as shall be appropriated by the 

City Council for public park and recreation facilities and programs.  
 

1.40.060 Compensation of members. 

The Parks Advisory Board members shall receive no compensation for their services. 
The Parks Advisory Board members shall have no authority to make any expenditure on 
behalf of the city, or obligate the city for payment of any sums of money. However, they 
will make recommendations to the city council from time to time regarding expenditures 
and/or obligations.  

1.40.070 Quorum – Rules and regulations. 

A majority of the appointed Parks Advisory Board shall constitute a quorum. The Board 
shall adopt rules and regulations to conduct its affairs, which rules and regulations shall 
be consistent with the laws of the state of Oregon, North Plains City Charter and Ccity 
of North Plains ordinances.  

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging: 
0.31"

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 84 of 93



ORDINANCE NO. 415  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING CHAPTER 1.40 PARKS BOARD 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains has maintained an ad hoc committee to review 
and evaluate park related issues for several years, and 
 

WHEREAS, Parks Board may provide additional assistance to the City Council if it 
were authorized as a standing committee of the Council. 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The Municipal Code shall be amended to include Chapter 1.40 

Parks Board as stated on Exhibit A.  
 

Section 2. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application 
to any person or circumstances is held to be unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Ordinance or the 
application of the provisions to other persons or circumstances 
shall not be affected. 

 
INTRODUCED on the 18th day of March, 2013, AND 

ADOPTED this 1st day of April, 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 85 of 93



 
Chapter 1.40 
Parks Board 

 
1.40.010 Parks Board established. 
 
The Parks Board, composed of  five to nine members, to be appointed by the mayor 
with the consent of the city council, is hereby established. The Parks Board members 
shall appoint, at their first regular meeting, a chairperson and vice chairperson from their 
membership. The position of chairperson shall be selected each January for a one-year 
term. 
 
1.40.020 Membership qualifications. 
 
Qualifications for appointment to membership on the Parks Board include 
demonstration of positive interest in the development, operation and maintenance of 
public parks, open spaces and trails in North Plains and status as a resident or 
representative of a property or business owner within the city limits. The Board shall be 
comprised of at least one, but not more than two, city councilors and one, but not more 
than two Planning Commissioners.  
 
1.40.030 Terms of office. 
 
The term of each of the initial members shall be determined by the mayor with the 
consent of the council.  
Upon the expiration of the terms of each of the initial members, the mayor shall, with the 
consent of the council, appoint a successor to each member whose term shall have 
expired.  
Each succeeding term following the initial appointment shall be for a period of two 
years, and the mayor shall, with the consent of the council, appoint successors to such 
offices for each term of two years thereafter. Appointments shall be structured so as to 
ensure that terms overlap.  
The mayor, with the consent of the council, may also appoint city council advisory 
members to the committee who will serve on an ex officio basis and without vote.  
Vacancies of the Parks Board shall be filled for the remaining term of vacant positions in 
the same manner as the original appointment. It shall be the duty of the chairperson or 
the vice chairperson of the board to notify the mayor and city council when a vacancy 
exists. 
 
1.40.040 Meetings. 
 
The Parks Board shall meet at least quarterly on a specific schedule adopted for the 
year by the board members. The board chairperson may call, by and upon the 
concurrence of three members, special meetings of the board.  
 
1.40.050 Purpose. 
 

Exhibit A 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 86 of 93



The general functions of the Parks Board shall be to advise the Public Works Director 
and City Council on issues such as: 
 

(1) Concerning the management, care and control of public parks and recreation 
facilities and programs of the City, together with all park property and 
recreation facilities which may be acquired and developed; 

 
(2) Concerning the making and altering from time to time of needful rules and 

regulations for the maintenance of order, safety and decency in said parks 
and recreation facilities; 

 
(3) Concerning the establishment and modification of fees for park and 

recreation services, programs, or facility rentals; 
 
(4) Concerning the expenditure of such funds as shall be appropriated by the 

City Council for public park and recreation facilities and programs.  
 
1.40.060 Compensation of members. 
 
The Parks Board members shall receive no compensation for their services.  
 
1.40.070 Quorum – Rules and regulations. 
 
A majority of the appointed Parks Board shall constitute a quorum. The Board shall 
adopt rules and regulations to conduct its affairs, which rules and regulations shall be 
consistent with the laws of the state of Oregon, North Plains City Charter and City of 
North Plains Ordinances.  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 87 of 93



 

Agenda Item No:10B  
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 
Date:   March 15, 2013 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance No. 414 Municipal Code 

Chapter 3.01 regarding Sanitary Sewer System 
 
 
Request: Council read Ordinance No. 414 amending Chapter 3.01 of the Municipal 
Code regarding Sanitary Sewer System for the second time and adopt the Ordinance.  
 
Background:  In January 1985 the City adopted Ordinance No.146 providing for a 
Sanitary Sewer System. (A sanitary sewer system conveys waste water such as that 
from a toilet, washer or sink to a waste water treatment plant before the water is 
returned to the ecosystem; as opposed to storm sewer system that conveys rainwater 
directly to streams and other water bodies.) 
 
Since that time the United Sewerage Agency was reconstituted as Clean Water 
Services and most buildings in North Plains were connected to the sanitary sewer 
system, making some of the language in the ordinance appear outdated. The 
suggested revisions were shared with the City Attorney and Clean Water Services for 
comment.  
 
Fiscal Impact: Adoption of the updated ordinance has no fiscal impact on the City.  
 
Recommendation: Council read Ordinance No. 414 by title only for the second time 
and adopt.  
 

Sample Motion: I move to read Ordinance No. 414 by title only. 
 
Sample Motion: I move to adopt Ordinance No. 414. 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 88 of 93



ORDINANCE NO. 414  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, AMENDING CHAPTER 3.01 OF MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains adopted Ordinance No.146 in January 1985 
providing for a Sanitary Sewer System. 
 
 WHEREAS, a Sanitary Sewer System Master Plan was adopted by Ordinance 
No. 183, on December 4, 1989 relating to the use of public sewers within the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the United Sewerage Agency has been reconstituted as Clean 
Water Services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, most of the buildings in North Plains have been connected to the 

sanitary sewer system, making some of the language in Chapter 3.01 appear outdated.   
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 3.01 of the Municipal Code is amended in its 
entirety to reflect Exhibit “A”. 

 
Section 2. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its 

application to any person or circumstances is held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder 
of this Ordinance or the application of the provisions to 
other persons or circumstances shall not be affected. 

 
INTRODUCED on the 4th day of March, 2013, AND ADOPTED this 

18th day of March, 2013. 
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 

By:  _______________________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 89 of 93



 

 3.01 - 1  

Chapter 3.01 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

 

Sections: 

3.01.010 Service Provider. 

3.01.020 Definitions. 

3.01.030 Privies Septic Tanks. 

3.01.040 Connection Required.  

3.01.050 Discontinuance of Service.  

3.01.060 Exceptions.  

 

3.01.010 Service Provider.  

 

Clean Water Services, a county service district of Washington County,  provides 

sewage services in the City of North Plains, and its ordinances and resolutions and 

orders shall serve as the "The City of North Plains Sewerage System Code." 

 

3.01.020 Definitions.  

 

1) "Board" shall mean the Clean Water Services Board of Directors. 

 

2) "General Manager" shall mean the General Manager of Clean Water Services 

or his or her designee. 

 

3) "County" shall mean Washington County, Oregon. 

 

4) "District" shall mean Clean Water Services, formerly known as the "Unified 

Sewerage Agency.  

 

5) "System" or "District Wastewater" or "District Sewerage System" shall mean 

the complete system of Clean Water Services’ interceptors, trunks, mains, 

laterals, outfall lines, pumping stations and any other conveyances used for the 

collection of sewage and the treatment thereof located in the City of North 

Plains, Oregon. 

 

3.01.030 Privies Septic Tanks. 

 

No person shall construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool 

or other facility intended or used for the disposal of sewage within the corporate 

limits of the City.  

[Added by Ord. 150, December 17, 1985; amended by Ord. 151, January 7, 1985.] 

 

3.01.040 Connection Required.  

 

The owner of all buildings situated within the City and abutting on any street, sewer 

easement, alley or right-of-way in which there is located a public sanitary sewer is 

Agenda item No: 10B 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 90 of 93



 

 3.01 - 2  

hereby required at the owner's expense to obtain necessary permits and connect 

such building directly to the public sewer. 

 

3.01.050 Discontinuance of Service.  

 

The City may discontinue water service to the premises upon which a building or 

buildings is located which building or buildings is not connected to the public 

sewer system in accordance with the provisions of section 3.01.040 above. If the 

City elects to discontinue said water service, it shall provide the owner of such 

premises not less than thirty days written notice of the City's intention to 

discontinue water service. If such noncompliance affects matters of health or safety 

or other conditions that warrant such action, the City may discontinue water service 

immediately.  [Added by Ord. 150, December 17, 1985; amended by Ord. 151, 

January 7, 1985.] 

 

3.01.060 Exceptions.  

 

The provisions of section 3.01.040 above shall not apply to buildings which cannot 

be served by sewer improvements.  When sewer services become available, 

connection will be required as a condition of approval of any building permit or 

design review application.[Added by Ord. 150, December 17, 1985; amended by 

Ord. 151, January 7, 1985.] 

 

 

 

(ORD. 146, January 7, 1985.) 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 91 of 93



April 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 4/1 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 4/8 

Planning Commission Kindel  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 4/10 

Volunteer Recognition Event   6:00 p.m.at Jessie Mays 4/11 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 4/11 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 4/15 

Library Board 
 

Lenahan  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 4/17 

Playdate   1:30-5:00 pm Jessie Mays 4/28 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) 

Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 4/24 

Parks Advisory Committee Newton  4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 4/24 

Country Western Music Show: 
Combined with NPSC (Senior 
Benefit Dance) 

  North Plains Senior Center 4/27 

Metropolitan Area Communications 
Commission (MACC) 

Warren Lenahan No Meeting Scheduled  

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry No Meetings Scheduled  

 

Agenda Item: 12A 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 92 of 93



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
03/18/2013 
Page 93 of 93


	4A 031813 preliminary agenda
	4B 030413 Minutes
	8A letter to sunset park
	8B Memo Finance Director Rachael Lembo
	8B City of North Plains Board Letter - 2012
	8Ba City of North Plains Financials - 2012
	8C Memo Water rates discussion
	10A Memo Ord 415 Parks Board
	10Ab Chapter 1.40 Parks Board Exhibit A
	10Ac Chapter 1.40 Parks Board Exhibit A Final
	10Ac Ordinance No. 415 Parks Board
	10B Memo Ord 414 chapter 3.01sanitary sewer
	10B Ordinance No. 414 Sanitary Sewer System
	10Bb Chapter 3 01 - FINAL Sanitary Sewer System revised_formatted_ Pak Comments
	12A April 2013 Council Calendar
	Map of Glencoe Road Closures



